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Anolhcr large group, over 33 people. filled the
Jean Wanner Education and Conference Centeron
February 12tohear World Warll fighterace George
Chandlertalk about the *Second Yamamoto Mis-
sion.” George isanative of Wichita, Kansas. Priorto
World War Il heattended Ottawa (Kansas) Univer-
sity, Wichita State University and the California Insti-
tute of Technology.

Georgeenlisted asan Army Aviation Cadet in
November 1941 and completed his training as a
fighter pilotinJuly 1942 at Luke Field, Arizona. His
initial assignmentwasto Hawaii where he flew Curtiss
P-40 Warhawks in the 47" Fighter Squadron (FS),
15" Fighter Group (FG), Seventh Air Force (AF)
until December 1942, From Hawaii, George was

photo by Don Mathers

assigned to the 8" FS, 49* FG, Fifth AF at Port
Moresby, New Guinea. In April 1943, he was trans-
ferredtothe 339" FS, 347" FG, 13" AF at Guadalcanal,
Solomon Islands, where he flew Lockheed P-38 Light-
nings. While the P-38 was his primary mount and the
aircraftin which he achieved five aerial victories over
Japanese Zero fighters, George also had some time in

Bell P-39 Airacobras.

In all, George flew 101 combat missions in the
Solomon Islands until February 1944 when hereturned

"Yamamoto," con't. on page §
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Highschool students will present
History Day Projects atApril Luncheon

Our guest speakers for the April Membership Luncheon will be
students from Seaman High School. The Juniors, under the tutelage of
Susan Sittenauer, will present two topics. One will be President Harry
Truman’sdecision touse atomic bombs against Japan. The second will be
the Battle for Pointe du Hoc during the D-Day landings on Normandy,
France, June 6. 1944,

Susanrequires her high school Juniors to prepare topics for the annual
nationwide History Day competition. The studentshave beenthroughatleast
one level of competition before our April luncheon. Ifthey have finished in
thetoptwoat theirmostrecent contest, they qualify for the State contest. The
toptwo finishers at State qualify for Nationals, held in Washington, DC.

Thisisthe sixthyear we have asked Susanto bring students to the April
luncheon. Togiveanindi-
cation of the success of
her Juniors, Susan has

2007 Events traveledannually to Wash-
ington, DC forthe lastcight
Calendar ornine years.

The Membership

Event dates subject 1o change. Luncheon is April 9 at

_ 11:30 A.M.
April e
28 Celebrity Pancake Feed
May
19 Armed Forces Day

at Topeka’s Heartland Park

June
4-7 Aviation Education Class

InMemoriam

July
9-12 Aviation Education Class

Irene Mohney
i e November 20, 1921 -
-Y Aviation Education Class February 12,2007
#58

September 23 year member

29 Winged Foot 5K Run/Walk
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COMBAT AIR MUSEUM

InMemoriam

His name was John, butev-
eryoneatthe Museum called him
“Bill.” A memberand volunteer
for nearly 20 years. Bill Briery
passed away atage 82 onFebru-
ary 27.2007. When we mention
Bill. though. itis hard not to say
“Billand Marcella,” forthis wasa

.duoofvolunteermembers. Bill
and Marcellajoined the Museum
together in 1987 and over the
nexttwodecades worked events
together.attendedeventstogether.
and justcame out to the Museum
together. For this one time, we
willmostly rememberBill withthe
following words from charter
member and Vice Wing Com-
mander Gene Howerter.

“WhenIthink of Bill Bri-
ery. I think of a friend of the
Combat Air Museum who had
many dreams, visions. and ideas
which he felt would benefit the
organization. [ see amanworking
ourpopcornmachineatan USO
Show, or it could be one of our
Museum Swing Dances. One
couldalsoalways find Bill work-
ing atourannual Pancake Feed.

John W. "Bill" Briery

Left: Bill and Marcella Briery
Above: The Popcorn Man

More often than not. he would be
engaging others, both Celebrities
and Museum Membersinsome con-
versation, talking up the Museum or
asking questionsormaking sugges-
tions to make the event run more
smoothly. The Museumalso knew
that we could always counton both
Billand Marcellato help whenever
there wasaneventtobe held. They
would always be on hand to work at
the Air Shows the Combat Air
Museum would have. lending assis-
tance wherever they could serve
andenjoyingeachother’scompany.

“Morerecently the Museum
was in desperate need of a new
copyingmachine. When Bill found
out that we had this need. he went
right to work doing everything he
needed to do to secure one for the
Museum. It was only a shorttime
later that our organization was ec-

May 31, 1924 -
February 27,2007
#1088

20 year member

static as we had anew copier in
place, thanks to Bill.

“Bill wasanamazing per-
son. I think one of the most
amazing things we will remember
about Bill will be his participation
in our first ever 3K Run/Walk.
He notonly entered the event, but
he wonthe first place gold medal
forhisage group. Butthe memory
thatreally stands out of Bill and
this race is an 80 year old man
walking the last thousand vardsof
therace backwards. crossing the
finishline in less than 60 minutes.
Bill wasawinner. Healso partici-
pated inour second annual Run/
Walk this past September, finish-
ing againinlessthan 60 minutes.
Mostofhis family members were
at that race, also. lending their
supportinhonorofhim.

“Wewillallmiss Billand
whathe would bring to the Com-
bat Air Museum. He was always
busy securing things forthe Mu-
seum. making nametags. or put-
tingoutevent posterstohelpraise
money forthe good ofthe organi-
zation. Thank you. Bill.”

Jointhe CombatAir Museum!
Your membership and support are important to us.



COMBAT AIR MUSEUM

Armed Forces Day Celebration
Saturday, May 19, 2007

Combat Air Museum will take partin the Armed Forces Day Celebration at the Park on Saturday, May
19,2007. Topeka’s Heartland Park, thatis. Thisis the third vear we have supported this event puton by Heartland
Park owner Ray Irwinand his staff. Majorsponsor forthis vear’scelebrationis AT&T. The Topeka Capital Jowrnal
and Topeka Parks and Recreation are associate sponsors.

Wessupportthe event withadisplay of military vehicles. The eventprovides CAM alotofexposure to the folks
who come outto look at the military exhibits. car showand other activities. All branches of the military are scheduled
to have hardware ondisplay.

Setuptime forthe military displaysis 9 A.M. We will muster volunteers forthe eventat Hangar 604 about 7:30
-8 A M. anddrive our vehicles overto the display grounds. Alldisplayswill move outof Heartland Park by 5 P.M.

The tentative schedule ofeventsis:

7 AM. Gates open for racing competitorstocheck in

9 A.M. Gatesopen for Armed Forces displays and equipment set up

Noon Racing lunchand break

1 P.M. Aircraftarrival

1:30 P.M. Alldisplaysinplace and ready to open

2 P.M. GATES OPEN forall Armed Forces Day Activities
Alldisplaysactive—Carshow entrants arrive and park

3 P.M. Carshowcontinues—Display activity continues

3:30 P.M. Carshowjudging

4 P.M. Carshowawards ceremony ateating pavilion
4:15P.M. Section 8 band on stage at the eating pavilion
5 P.M. Break —End of day forracing— Display move out
5:15P.M. Santa Fe Band on stage in eating pavilion

5:45P.M. Break — Aircraftdeparture
6 P.M. COMBO SHOW onstage ineating pavilion
USO and Kings of Swing show and dance

7:30 P.M. Break — move to main grandstands for evening shows
8 P.M. Flyover
Balloon Salute

Introduction of Guests and Sponsors
Keep America Beautiful awards

8:20 P.M. 35thInfantry Band show at main stage
9:15P.M. 1812 Overture —Cannon salutes
9:25P.M. Fireworks

10 P.M. End of showday

11 P.M. Facility secure

Asyoucansee, thiswill be a full day of activities. Please keep up with yourlocal media to stay current with
the schedule ofevents. If voucan. spend an hour or two, or more. with CAM s displays or just come out toenjoy
the tribute to ourmembers ofthe Armed Forces and their families.

> >



CAMvolunteer's work
brings double benefits
through Westar's
Community Partner
program

Combat AirMuseum was a fortunate recipientofa $500
donation from Westar Energy in February. The giftwasa
resultofvolunteertime made tothe Museum by Bob Crapser.
Westar has a Community Partners program through which
employees, former employees and/or their spouse can do
volunteerwork and are eligible for cash donations to the not-
for-profitorganizationoftheirchoice. Bob’swife. Judy.isan
employee of Westar.

Volunteersare eligible fora $100 donationafter their
first 100 hours of volunteer work. Foreachadditional 100
hours, the volunteer’sname goes into a pool to be drawn for
larger amounts ofmoney. The pool drawings are for $500,
$750,and $1000 giftlevels. Bob’s name was drawn forone
ofthe $500 dollar gifts.

Bob and Danny San Romani attended a recognition
luncheonatthe Capitol Plaza Hotel
where the gifts were awarded.

COMBAT AIR MUSEUM

: Westar gave out $15.000 in do-
ViSltOl‘S nations to not-for-profit
organizations fromaroundthestate
During January of Kansas during the awards
the Museum had ceremony. On behalfof Combat
301 visitors AirMuseum weextend our thank
from 19 states youand appreciationto Boband
and Judy Crapser for their continued
Germany support of the Museum. and es-
Ireland pecially to Westar Energy and its
Japan Community Partners program.
During February ) ) )
we had
479 visitors
from 16 states
and
Canada
> > D

New
Supporters

Marshall & Katrina Clark
Christie Eidson
The Fager Family
John, Cheryl., Gabriella,
Amelia & Greyson
Major General (Ret) Greg Gardner
Tom & Diane Gorrell
Craig Linn
Hendrik, Joanna, Casper,
& Flynn Miejer
Gage Weibel

Renewing
Supporters

Oscar Albrecht
Joe, Julie. & Zak Amos
Gale Beal
Jim & Mary Braun
Marty. Terry, Andrew,
& Katherine Braun
Bill & Marcella Briery
Anderson Chandler
Bill Clawson
Ron & Linda Coash
Charles Cutler
Len Faulconer
Eldon Geffert
Harold Jameson
Richard Long
Ted Nolde
Harlan Sweeten
Loyd Thomas
Merton Wilch
James & Anita Young
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Five newexhibits went up since our last issue of
Plane Talk. Gene Howerter completed two more of
the drone engine exhibits,and nowall three engines are
clustered inthe northwestcornerof Hangar 604. Aswith
the firstdrone exhibit, Gene did a lot of Internetresearch
onthe engines and the types of drones they propelled.
Several photographs showing the drones and engines
appear inthe exhibits. '

MecCulloch, a name familiar to owners of chain
saws, builtboth ofthe engines inthese newestdisplays.
The smallerofthe two isthe Army AirForce Model O-
15-3. The larger has the AirForce designation O-100-
1. The formerwas used during World WarII: the latter
flew drones from 1946 into the late 1950°s. The O-100-
1-powered drones notonly served astargets for tradi-
tional gunners, they were also fired upon by Nike-Ajax
surface toairmissile batteries.

COMBAT AIR MUSEUM

New exhibits goupata
furious pace
thanks to our busy
volunteers

The McCulloch O-15-3 McCulloch Drone
Engine of World War II.

Gene'srescarchontheenginesalso provided much
material onthe typesof dronesthey powered. Radioplane
Company built virtually all of them. And hisresearch
came up with an interesting side story involving a
Radioplaneemployee.

In the Spring of 1945, the US Army 1¥ Motion
Picture Unit sent photographer David Conoveron as-
signmentto take photosof Womenin War Work. His
assignmenttook him to Radioplane Corporation. Among
the women he photographed was a pretty, smiling bru-
nette withlong curly hair. wearing blue coveralls withher
ID photo badge on herwaist. Gene puttwo of her photos
inthe O-100-1 exhibit.

One photo of the voung womanis ofher holdinga
propeller as though to install it on a drone engine.
Anotherphotoisof herwitha wrenchonadrone engine.
The young War Worker is also identified by name:

The McCulloch
0-100-1 Drone Engine used
1945-1958,
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Norma Jeane. Many of you will recognize thatname for her later
fame. Forthose ofyou who do not, we recommend youdoalittle
research. Youmay be surprised by what you find.

Inthis same exhibit are photos takenat the Smokey Hill Air
Force Base, Salina. Kansas and the Smokey Hill Gunnery Range
southwest of Salina.

Tocomplete the exhibit withthe O-15-3 drone engine, Gene
hada propellerbuilt for the engine.

Don Dawson finished the repairs and surface preparation of
the Little Johnrocketand painted itoverall olive drab with white US
ARMY markings. Based onresearch we did onthe Little John. we
feel we have one of the XM47 rocket test vehicles. Thisis based
onthetail finconfigurationonthe rocketand the overall length when
compared to the M51 (MGR-3A)tactical rockets deployed inthe
field. OurLittle John has triangular-shaped tail finsand isabout 12
feetlong. The M51 had rectangular tail fins and was about 14-1/
2feetlong.

Builtby EmersonElectric Manufacturing Company, the Little
John was developed as anair-transportable, unguided artillery
rocket for US Army airborne units. The M31 was delivered fully
assembled by helicopteroronits towed launcher. Once in position.
itwasready to fire.

The rocket could carry a conventional warhead ora W-45
nuclear warhead of 1-10kiloton vield. It flewata speed of Mach
1.5witharangeof 11.3 miles(seemsclose foranuclear warhead).
Little Johns were first deployed in 1961 and withdrawn from
service in 1969.

CAM acquiredits Little Johnin 1986 from FortRiley. Kansas
through the General Services Administration Surplus Property. It
is currently on exhibit in the northwest corner of Hangar 604.

Donisnow painting the color coats on the T-33 tip tanks.

Dave Houser covered the wingsand control surfaces forour
World Warll Link Trainerand is currently painting them back to
theiryellowmarkings. The rudderisbeing painted withred and
white stripes.

"Exhibits," con't. on page 16

The Little John rocket stands next to the
Navy surface to air missile.
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"Yamamoto," con't. from page 1

tothe United States and was assigned as a flight instruc-
torat Chico Airfield, California, where he taught fighter
tactics. He left the service in January 1946 as a Major.
Hisawards include the Distinguished Flying Crossand
the Air Force Medal with 11 Oak Leaf Clusters.

George formedand hasbeenactive as Presidentof
the Second Yamamoto Mission Association (SYMA),
which was the focus ofhispresentation. Thisassociation
is devoted to the study of the shoot down of Japanese
Admiral Isoroku Yamamoto by Rex Barber ofthe 339"
FSonApril 18,1943 over Bougainville Island, Papua
New Guinea. Many histories of this secret missioncredit
339" pilot Tom Lanphierwithshootingdown Yamamoto’s
Mitsubishi GM4 “Betty” bomber. Official records give
Lanphier and Barber each %: credit for the shootdown.
The records say Barber set the Betty on fire, then
Lanphierknocked itdown. Throughtheirresearchand
investigationofthe mission, SYMA contends that Rex
Barber, and he alone, downed Yamamoto’s aircraft
overthejungle of Bougainville.

The story of the Yamamoto missionisone that will
probably be foreverremembered inthe annals of military

aviation history. Japanese Fleet Admiral Isoroku*-

Yamamoto was Japan’s naval Commander—in-Chief
and architect of the Japanese attack on Pearl Harbor.
After World War |, he studied for two years at Harvard
and the US Naval War College. Yamamoto became
familiar withthe United Statesand its language, and had
keen insight to the mettle of the American people.
Eliminating Yamamotowould cripple Japan’snaval plan-
ningand future strategies.

In 1942, US code breakers had broken the Japa-
nese naval codes and had managed tokeepit secret that
they had done so. Code breakers intercepted amessage
about Yamamoto flying onaninspectiontour on April
18, 1943 to Kahili airdrome on the southern tip of
Bougainville Island. Forces on Guadalcanal were in-
formed of this on April 17, with the orders to plan and
execute amissionand destroy Yamamoto’s planeatall
costs.

Major John Mitchell, commanderofthe 339", was
charged withexecuting the mission. It would involve a
432-mile over-water flight that would arrive inthe same
place and time as Yamamoto’s flight. One of the
problems Mitchell had up front wasareliable compass
forthe P-38 aircraft. Herequested, and received from
theNavy,acompass that wasreliableand had itmounted

in his aircraft. The flight itself was made using dead
reckoning. Mitchell relied onhis compass headings,and
used time and speed and aknee computer to determine
the lengthsofhistrack linesand whento turn. The flight
to Bougainville required four course headings. To further
compound the mission, the P-38s flew only 50 feet
above the waterand away from landto avoid detection.
Themissionwas flowninradiosilence. EighteenP-38s
of the 339" took off the early morning of April 18, but
two soon turned back, one with a blown tire ontake-off,
the other with fuel feed problems. The remaining 16
planes successfully completed the intercept.

About40milesfrom Bougainville the P-38sbegan
climbing, and as the intercept time neared one pilot
spotted the Yamamoto flight. It consisted of six zero
fightersand two Betty bombers. Mitchell arrived where
he wanted to be within one minute’s times and less than
onemileleftorrightofhisintendedpointoverBougainville.

Mitchell ordered the flight to break into their ele-
ments. Fouraircraft were designated the killer flight with
their sole purpose of shooting down Yamamoto. The
remaining P-38s were to fly coveragainst the Japanese
fighters.

Tom Lanphier, Rex Barber, Besby Holmes and

‘Ray Hine made upthekiller flight. But Holmescould not

gethis wing tankstodrop, and Hine and he turned away
from the bombers. Lanphier turned left into the Zero
fightersand Barber turned right into the bombers. And
from here is where the conflict begins as to who shot
down whom. Lanphier reported he fired into a Betty
bomber from the three o’ clock (right side) position, blew
itsright wing off, and it crashed into the jungle. Barber
reported he fired into a Betty from the six o’clock (rear)
position, moving from side to side and seeing hits onits
leftand right fuselage, engines and tail section. He then
hadtoabruptly maneuvertoavoidacollisionand attack-
ing Japanese fighters. He got over water, looked back,
and sawa pillar of smoke rising from the jungle.

Besby Holmes, now with his wing tanks jettisoned,
initiated an attack on a second Betty. Barber then
attacked it, and the bomber blew upand crashed into the
sea. Piecesoftheaircrafthit Barber’s plane. Amazingly,
three people survivedthe crash of this Betty, including its
pilot.

Other P-38s battled the Japanese escort fighters,
butsoonall brokeaway and made adirect flight back to
Guadalcanal. OneP-38, thatof Ray Hine, didnotreturn.
Others had battle damage. Barber’s P-38 had over 100
bulletholesinit.



Almostassoonas he climbed outofhis plane, Tom
Lanphier claimed credit forshooting down Yamamoto,
something that Rex Barber questioned. Later, John
Mitchell said there was no way of knowing which Betty
Yamamoto wason.

Normally, the claimsofapilot’sair combat could
be verified with guncamera footage. Butthe hot, humid
climate ofthe Solomons ruined guncamerafilm sonone
of the P-38s had functional gun cameras. Toadd more
to the confusion and debate over who shot down
Yamamoto, claims were made thata third Betty bomber
was shotdown.

Afterthe warended Tom Lanphier was permitted
to talk about and publish accounts of the Yamamoto
Mission. In newspapers, magazines, speeches and
books, he claimed he was the one who shot down
Yamamoto, alwaysclaiming thathe shotthe right wing off
the bomber. When Lanphier first made his claims,
Barbercalled him and refuted some of the things Lanphier
had written.

Inthe 1950°s US AirForce investigatorsreviewing
Japanese records found that there were only two Betty
bombers in Yamamoto’s

was lying adjacent to the fuselage. The left wing ap-
peared to have separated from the plane when it hit a
large tree during the crash. Althoughthe fuselage had
burned, investigators found where the fuselage had been
struck by machine gun fire from the rear — as Barber
reported in his attack on a Betty. There wasnoidenti-
fiable evidence the Betty in the jungle had been hit by
machine gun fire from three o’clock.

Based on these findings, George Chandler chal-
lenged Mr. Cargill Hall, ChiefofResearch, Officeof Air
Force History to investigate these findings. When Cargill
seemed less than enthusiastic about convening another
Victory Credit Board of review, George and otherpilots
organized SYMA inaneffort to set the record straight.

SYMA contacted the private owner of arestored
P-38 fighter and asked that he put the plane through the
maneuvers Lanphier claimed to have made. Basedon
time and speed and the fact the Betty did notappearto
alteritscourse, SYMA investigatorsconcluded Lanphier
could nothave caught up to the Betty priorto its crash

flight, not three as had been
claimedbyP-38pilots. These -
investigators awarded %2
crediteach to Lanphier and
Barber for the plane that
crashed in the jungle, and

.- SYMA investigators-.concluded- - -
Lanphier could not have
caught up to the Betty prior to
its crash into the jungile.

intothe jungle.

SYMA presented thisand otherinformationto Dr.
Richard Kohn, Chief, Of-
ficeof AirForce History.

-Aspartofhisreview, Dr.
Kohn had AirForce rep-

resentatives contact the
pilot of the Betty that
crashed into the sea. In

awarded Holmes and Barber
%2 credit each for the Betty
thatcrashed in the sea.

In 1985 Lanphier insisted that the Office of Air
ForceHistory givehim fullcreditfordowning Yamamoto’s
plane. A Victory CreditReviewBoard was convenedto
review the matter. The Board concluded that Barber
attacked the plane firstseverely damaging itand Lanphier
then finished it of fby attacking from the three o’clock
position and shooting the right wing off. The board
further concluded that the % credit to each pilot was
appropriate.

In 1988 it was learned that the wreckage of
Yamamoto’s Betty wasaccessible inthe Bougainville
jungle and had been visited by curiosity seekers. Soon,
those seriously seeking a final conclusionto the contro-
versy joined the curious. What people found seemed to
putaquestiontoLanphier’sclaim and supported Barber’s
accountofhisattack onaBetty bomber45 yearsearlier.

The right wing Lanphier claimed to have shot off

what George calledanin-
terviewthatincluded very
leading questions, the pilotsaid several P-38s attacked
Yamamoto’s plane and said one that attacked from the
left side finished shooting down the plane.
Beforeleavingofficein 1990, Dr. KohntoldSYMA
he felt their information was not credible and would not
convenea Victory Credit Board of Review. SYMA and
RexBarberthen puta formal request to the Secretary of
the Air Force for a Formal Air Force Board of the
Correction of Military Records. A five-memberboard
reviewed the evidence and when the final vote was made
in 1992, two members voted to award Barber full credit
forthe shootdown, two others voted status quo, and the
board chairman abstained. The chairman did write a
review ofthe evidence that in part questioned Lanphier’s
claims. The Secretary ofthe AirForce, Donald B.Rice
reviewed the findings, and as he left office in January

"Yamamoto," con't. on page 10



photo by Don Mathers

George Chandler (right) presents Vice Board Chairman
Gene Howerter with a model of his
P-38 Lightning, Barbara Ann 1V.

"Yamamoto," con't. from page9

1993 decided to go status quo, Y2 creditto each Lanphier
and Barber.

SYMA and Barber then filed a Lawsuit in the
Portland, Oregon District Court in 1993 asking the judge
tomakea finding that the Secretary ofthe Air Force had
not considered the evidence and that his finding was
improper. The judge refused to make this finding. In
December of the same year SYMA and Barber ap-
pealed thisruling inthe Ninth Circuit Courtof Appealsin
San Francisco. The Ninth Circuit Court sided with the
lowercourt.

George told the audience he had come to the
conclusionthere wasaconspiracy inhigherechelons of
the Air Force to not tarnish Tom Lanphier’s name by
awarding Rex Barber full credit for shooting down
Yamamoto. George felt much of this went back to
World Warll.

Lanphier’s fatherwason General Henry H. Amold’s
staff. Amoldwas Commanding General ofthe US Army
AirForcesduring World Warll. Lanphier’sbrother.a
Marine Corps pilot, was shot down, tortured, and died
inaJapanese POW campon Bougainville. Georgealso
said that Lanphier’s Godfather was General James
Doolittle. George also pointed out inconsistencies in
videointerviews with Lanphier. Hedid not tell the same
storyall ofthe time.

Attempts to bring the matter before the Office of
AirForce History were refused. SYMA was told if the

10

Office received another letter from them., it would be
returned unopened. They were through with the inves-
tigation.

SYMA did get support from other organizations,
though. In 1997 the American Fighter Aces Association
Board of Directors voted unanimously to commit the
association to the position that Rex Barber alone shot
down Yamamoto. In 1998. the then Confederate Air
Force took a similar position. Andin2003, whetherat
the bequestof SYMA ornotis notknown. the Governor
and State Legislature of Oregon voted that their native
son, Rex Barber, was the sole pilot who shot down
AdmiralIsoroku Yamamoto.

In 1995 SYMA undertook another matter they felt
needed correction. Intheirresearchand investigationof
the Rex Barber/Tom Lanphiercontroversy. they uncov-
ered evidence thatadecisionto notaward John Mitchell
the Medal of Honor for leading the Yamamoto Mission
included errors submitted to the chain of command.
Mitchell instead wasawarded the Navy Cross. SYMA's
efforts were approvedall the way through Navy channels
but were disapproved at the State Department. In 1995
US Marines on Okinawa strained US relations with
Japan over the assault and rape of a Japanese girl.
SYMA feltthat the State Departmentapparently did not
wantto furtherstrain relations by awarding the Medal of
Honortothemanwho led the missiontoshootdown their
still-beloved Admiral Yamamoto. The Navy did not
pursue the matter further.

Tom Lanphierdiedin 1987. JohnMitchell died in
1995. Rex Barber died in 2001. But the efforts of
SYMA have notended with theirdeaths. The Second
Yamamoto Mission Association continues to lobby to
have the records corrected inregards to who really shot
down Admiral Yamamoto and to have John Mitchell
awarded the Medal of Honor.

After his presentation, George and his brother,
Anderson Chandler. presented three framed art prints
of' P-38softhe 339" Fighter Squadron to the Museum.
All have signatures of pilots ofthe 339" including some
who flewonthe Yamamoto mission. George also gave
usan unframedart printof World Warl American pilot
Raoul Lufbery getting his fifth aerial victory in 1916,
becoming the United State’s first fighterace.

George then gave usa 1/32 scale plastic model of
P-38 Lightning,#125.named Barbara AnnIV. Thiswas
George’s last P-38 flown with the 339" FS. %



Letters from a war
The families of missing airmen exchange letters

This is the second andfinal installment of family
letters written by the next of kin of crewmen aboard
a B-24 Liberator bomber to the mother and sister of
CAM member Joe Higgins after the bomber was
shot down on a mission to Toulon, France on July 3,
1943. Joe was a member of the bomber's crew.

These letters present a unique view of the war
on the home front as the next of kin correspond and
learn the fate and status of the ten men who made up
the crew of the “Free Delivery.” They were written
to his mother, Anna, and to his sister, Margaret.

The letters have been editedfor format only. All
spelling, punctuation, and grammar have been left
unedited.

(Handwritten)
Kearney, Nebr.
10/13/44
DearMissHiggins; -

I can’ttell you how happy I was this morning,
when I rec’d yournice letter. [ havethought of writing
youfolksseveral times

I had heard of your brother’s being a prisoner
sometimeago from Mrs Porter. | hear fromseveral ofthe
boys’ folks.

I suppose you have heard that all the boys have
ben accounted for accept the 3 from Ala. This seems
very odd.

I am so glad that you have heard from your
brother. As, Yet we haven’theard from Kenneth orthe
WarDep’tastowhereheisinterned. Ihave greathopes
of hearing soon now as you have! It encourages us to
knowthatsomeonehasheard. I, like you, wonderifthey
will have enough clothes & food. The weather must get
pretty cold up that far.

Kenneth never mentioned any of his friends
overseas by name, but he sent me some snap-shots ofhe
&and group. Ihavelearned through MrsIva Underwood
(sister of Ory Creswsll) that your brother is one of the
group. Maybe You have the snapshotalso. Ifnot,and
youwould like one I would be glad to get anegative for
you. Itisaplainpicture & they alllook so well. Hesent
it from the rest Camp at Capri.

L

If, I hear from Kenneth soon, as I feel I surely
will, I will write You. I know you are like myself
interested inall the crew & their wherabouts.

Whatposition did Joe hold on the plane? Ken.
was Radio-man & awaist-gunner. Wehaveanotherson
whois finishinghis trainingasa turret-gunner, and willbe
sentoverseas about the last of the yr.

I hope & pray this war will some end and our
boys Can Comehomeandlive & enjoythemselvesonce
more.

Thanking you for your very sweet letter,[am

Yourssincerely
(signed)MrsRuth Allen
Mys. Allen's sonwas Technical Sergeant Kenneth F.
Allen, radioman and waist gunner on the plane.

* * * * *

(Handwritten)
oo Oct16/1944 -
Eire, Pa.
Dear Mrs. Higgins.

Received Your letter dated Oct.10® and was
gladto hear from You

Iamsoglad for Youand YourFamilythat You
haveheard from Joe, evenifit wasacard, butstillitmade
You feel good to see andread His hand writing.

LetsHope and Pray that the War will beoverso
that Yoursecond Brother wont have to go through with
what Joe did.

I only have one Brother in the Army and the
Family is always worried for His safty, and here You
Have two, so it must be twice as hard.

Youasked about my Brother Walter. Well We
haventheard from Himsince Aug 25% When He said that
Ishould not writetill He wiresme. because He iscoming
Homeon furlogh from 21 to 30 days Sobeing toanxious
Ididhaveto writeand all mail cameback It was marked,
enrotetoU.S.A. forward to my address, so we are still
waitingand wondering whatheld Himupand where. So
when He does come I’ll have Him write You.

Very Sincerrely
(signed)Mrs.BerthaWasinlewski

continued on page 12
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Bertha Wasinlewski's brother was Staff” Sergeant
Walter Lubiewjewski. He was nose gunner on the
plane. He evaded capture after landing in German
occupied France, hooked up with members of the
Free French and successfully returned to England.
On October 27, 1944 Staff Sergeant Lubicjewski
wired Mrs. Anna Higgins that he was stateside on
leave and that he would write her soon.

(Typewnritten)
2041 Wightman St.
Pittsburgh. (17)Pa.
October 18, 1944
DearMiss Higgins:

Up to the present writing | have not heard
directly frommy son. The otherday agirl friend ofhis
called me on the phone and told me she received a card
from him from prisoncamp. She thenmailed sametome
andI have begun trying to find out why T have personally
not heard from him. Through the Red Cross we may be
ableto getsome word from him directly tous. Itmay be
that he had writtenand letter or card destroyed or lost.
Anyway thisisall I really know so far.

The name of the camp where my son is being
heldis StalagLuft9C. Itisinthe heart of Germany and
from we understand it is the biggest hospital for war
prisoners. Weare praying he is not hurt.

Ijoinyouinsharing yourhappinessinlearning of
the whereabouts of your Brother and should [ in the
meantime hearanymore news I will be glad torelate same
toyou.

Sincerely Yours.

(typed)Mrs. Gussie Rosenfeld
Mrs. Rosenfeld’s sonwas Private Abraham Rosenfeld.
tail gunner on the plane.

* * * * #
(Typewritten)
October 20", 1944
Dearest Margaret.

Havent heard from youin quite some time, so |
will just peck out a word to yvou. 1 still have no news
regarding “"CRES”. Amstillhoping.however.

Sometime ago. rathera fewdaysdaysago. T had
aletter from Mrs. Allenof Kearney. Nebraska. enclos-
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ing a snap shot of four of the boys taken on Capri. She
said that she did notknowany ofthe crew, but wondered
ifeither ofthe boys happened to be My Brother. Luck
would have it thathe wasamong the group, the tallest boy
ofallstanding. Hersonisthe boy standing by the side of
Brother. and Miriam saysthat she thinks the boy in front
of Kenneth Allenis Higgins. I am enclosinga picture |
had made from the small one.and you canreturnitifitis
notJoe.and [ willsendittoanothermember’s family. My
Motherand Dad are so happy to getone that  am sure
the restof you will be. as it was made possibly in June.
My Bud looked so well that we feel thathe could take it
ifheisaPrisoner. Ijudgenone ofthe other families have
heard anything. asT haventheardlately. otherthan from
Mrs. Porter, and she got it on the 3™ of October. He
gave the name of the camp, butoffhand I have forgotten
the name. Said he had met two boys from his home town
inthe camp. Was doing fairly well, food was nottoo bad,
but that he couldent write very often.

I hope by this time you have heard from your
Brother. Letme knowifyouhave. Iwould like tokeep
up withthe boysasbestIcan. Itdoes help to know what
ishappening to the other fellows. even though we don’t
know whatis happening to our Alabama Boys. I think
we have not been living right here tohave all of them still
onthe missing list.

Must go now, asmy patientsare nowcoming in
forthe evening work. which will bea session.
Please excuse my messy letter. butitis between
phones. patients, and me, whichis the worst ofall.
Good Luck toyvouandall concerned. Hope you
have good news.
Sincerely,
(typed) IvaUnderwood

Iva Underwood’s brother was Technical Ser-
geant Ory E. Creswell. flight engineer and top turret
gunner on the plane.

*

(Handwritten)

20 Kingsbury Street
Framingham, Mass.
October 24. 1944

DearMiss Higgins

Received yourletteracouple of weeksago.and
meant to answer at once but theese couple of weeks
seemedto be exceptionally busy.
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We had a letter from John on October 5%,
writtenonJuly 26", Heisat Stalag Luft 1. He said very
little except that he was well and eating well due to
American Red Cross parcels. Give the families of the
missing flyerssome hope. He said he felt thathe had been
lucky and that he had mettwo fellows from town.

LtGrunewald isat Stalag L uft 3 thatis very near
Stalag Luft4. If you wanta very complete picture of life
in a prison camp, get the Nov. issue of Flying it tells
everything from the time of capture. ifyoucan’t getitlet
me knowand I will try to get one for you.

Letushopethattheir healthand spirits will keep
up and that we will soon have them home. T hope Mrs
Allen has heard from her son by now.

Sincerely yours

(signed) Helene B. Porter
Helene Porter’s son, Second Lieutenant John D.
Porter, was navigator on the plane.

*

(Handwritten)
Phenix City. Ala.
November 7, 1944
DearMargaret:-

I have just been notified by the War Dept..
stating thatmy husband. Lt Wm T. Newborg, waskilled
inaction lastJuly 5%, Iam so disturbed, justcan'tbelieve
ityet. I wanted to have writtento you before this time,
but until a few weeks ago, | was away in the Waves. |
was discharged when | requested to come home when
the worry ofall this uncertainty was atits heighth.

I do hope you have heard from Joe. that he is
alrightinthe prisoncamp.

Please write to me when you hear anything
further from the crew.

Sincerely,
(signed)Mary Newborg
Second Lieutenant William T. Newborg was co-pilot
onthe plane. Joeremembersthis missionas being Li.
Newborg s first with this crew.
&

* B

*
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(Handwritten)
Nov. 9, 44
My Dear Margaret—

Your very sweet letter came vesterday, and |
was so happy to hear from you again. and to get the
informationyouincluded. Itreally gave me something to
work on.

Today I receiveda letter from Mary Newborg,
which bore the sad news of the death of Lt Wm T
Newborg. She wasnotified November 5% that was her
husband was killed in action on July 5%. She was so
upset. but being brave. We still have no news, and
Saturday I had aletter from EvaMae Holcombe, saying
they still no news.

Wellitonly leaves Cresand Holcombe now. |
amtrying to prepare myselfforany news. buthonestI
don’tknowhow] cantakeitifitisbad. Ofcourse I know
I can as people do it every day.

Miriam, Cres” wife.isjust sick from suspense. and
waiting.

I havent seen Mother and Dad in almost two
months, butam going home tomorrow night to spend
Saturday with. Judging from theirletters, they have held
up fine, butlam most grey headed. Really Thave gotten
so grey inthe last sixmonths. My bossteases me daily,
butltellhimIhave caughtthem. Itreally couldentbeage.
[hadaletter from Jane Ga fewdaysago, but she did not
tell me which Camp Eddie wasin, in fact.I had had no
informationregarding where any ofthe boys were. Jane
is so happy about the baby. She says she keeps her so
busy that she dosent have time to think too much, that
whichsheisvery greatful for.

Oh yes. I am so proud of My Bud. and I have
alwaysthought him the Mostimportant guy around the
country.

I do hope Al has better luck than Joe had.
however. Joe'sis good Compared to others. Youstill
have lotsto be thankful for. Am stillhoping forthe best.
and will let youknow, when I do get some information.
The besttoyouand your family, and especially to Al. Let
me hear from youagain. Iliketoknowhowtheboysare.
“Cres”always spoke of Higgins when he was home the
fewdays. And I feel thatI know him. It will be a year
Thanksgiving since he was home last. Theday willbea
bit sad for us, as we all had Thanksgiving dinner with
Motherand Dad up inthe country. He had to leave on
Monday withouteither Miriam or I seeing him off. ashe

confinued on page 14
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thought he would be here until Tuesday, and after
checking his schedu:e he had only an hourto pack dress,
and getto the train. It seemed suchanabrupted way to
leave. butcouldent be helped. but I guessit was better,
sincel just Cantsay “good by™.
Will go—so Good Night.
Sincerely
(signed ) IvaUnderwood

& & * #* %
(Handwritten)
November 12, "44
Dearest Margaret-

Justanote tonight to give youthe latestreports.
Mary Newborg may have informed you, butifnotI will.

She had a telegram from the government No-
vember 2,nd, stating her husband Lt Wm T Newborg
waskilled inaction July 5®. Thave written her, butitis
sohard to find the right words to say. 1 feel so sorry for
her.and know, judging from her letter. she feels so lost
andempty. [ haveaskedhertocome uptosee meifshe
can.

We havenot had any further informationabout
“Cres”, nor have we heard from Walter L.

Good night fornow

Love
(signed)Iva
*® * * * %
(Handwritten)
Florence, Ala.
Dec. 3. 1944

Dear Margaret.

JustthoughtI'dwrite youa few words. We had
atelegram from the War Dep’t Sat..Dec. 2. thatFoy L.
was killed on July 5. Of course, we are very much
distressed. We had hopesof his being a prisonerorsafe
somewhere but now I suppose all hope is gone. [ can
hardly bearto think ofhis nevercoming home again. It
seems unbearable but things happento everybody like
that. There are many homes sad from the same news.

Have youheard anything from your brother? |
hope he continues to be safe and gets home OK.

I had to come back to school this week — we are
having some final exams. Itwillbe anawful task formeto
dolguess. Study forthem. [can’tgetmy mindonbooks.
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I"ll say So Long Now. Write if you hear from
your brother. Foy Lee did think so much of him and
talked alotabout him.

Bye - & Best Regards,

(signed) EvaMae Holcombe
Eva Holcombe's brother, Staff Sergeant Foy Lee
Holcombe, was the ball turret gunner on the plane.

¥ * * * s
(Handwritten)
Dec 3, 1944
Dear Margaret—

Withavery sad heart I write youthisnote. We
receivedatelegram Friday Dec 1,saying that “Cres™ was
killed inaction July 5%. We had hoped so very hard but
itjust wasent in our cards. I now feel so lost.as | have
no brother. I spentthe week end up withMy Motherand
Dad, whom I feel so sorry for, as I cant be with them like
I'would like to be, butlife just dosent plan things our way
allthe time. They are suffering somuch. [ could take it
betterif I dident worry about them so much. They are
all have now of our family. Will say by fornow.

Love
(signed)Iva
3 i * # #®
(Handwritten)

20Kingsbury Street

Framingham. Mass.

Jan 1. 1945.
DearMiss Higgins.

Thank you very much for your nice Christmas
card. and may [ wishyouaHappy New year. T hope that
itwill notbe too far advanced when ourboys will come
home.

Have you heard from your brother lately? My
last from John is still the one written on July 26" and
received Oct. 5. I must say thatthe warnotending was
asevere disappointment tome. and the news was so bad
at Christmas time. NotthatI everdoubt for one minute
that we will win but every extra minute scems an age.
HoweverIhave friends whose boys have been prisoners
foroverayearsome two years, sol am ashamed to say
anything in the face of their disappointment.

Thentoo the news was so bad about (for) two
ofthe boys on the plane. that I try to be cherful. I am
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just getting my third box ready for John.
IfThearanything ofinterest willlet vouknowat

once.
Yourssincerely,
(signed)Helene B. Porter
* * * i #
(Handwritten)
Kearney. Nebr.
Jan. 16, 1945.
DearMargaret:

[have alittle good newsto write you. A yetwe
haven’thad aword from Kenneth but his girl-friend had
acard from himaweek ago. He said he was well then.
[tsure was grand to see his handwriting again.

Idon’tknow ifl wrote youafterI gothisaddress
the 20" of Nov. or not. They told me he had been
transferred to Stalag 9C then. On his card he was at
Stalag Luft 1l and yesterday I gota letter from the war
dep’t. saying he wastransferred to Stalag Lufi4. That
was where your brother Joe was, wasn’tit? Is he there
yet? And have you heard from him anymore. I know
Kenneth has been writing us whenever he could and we
justdon’tgetthem.

Our brother who isonaB-17 Bomber has just
gone overseas. He was home for Xmasday. Ashe was
processingat LincolnNebr. notso faraway. Talso went
to Lincoln & visited him from Thur. until Sat. Itseemsso
hard to see him go. I live indread thathe may have togo
through what Kenneth has ormaybe worse.

[ guess you heard that Ory Creswell and
Newborg were reported killed in Action July 5%, Have
youeverheard whether Mr. Holcombe everheard ofhis
son? [ haven't.

Kenneth Card to Buelah was written Sept. 41,
s0 he may never get any of my letters I write as he is
moved too often.

Write me soon.
Yourssincerely
(signed) Mrs Ruth Allen
b * ¢ # *
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(Handwritten)
June 24" °45
Dearest Margaret —

Am wondering tonightif Joe has gotten home
yet. I had a wonderful letter from Eddie Grunewald,
regarding “Cres™. and my family feelssomuchbetterto
know something definite. IfJoe feels like writing I should
liketo hear from him. Tellingme how Brotherwasbefore
the fatal flight. and ifhis health was alright.

Alongatthe last we thought something mustbe
wrong as he seemed so depressed in his letters. I think
he hada feeling things were not working out forhim. We
wondered if the boys mighthave knowifhis health was
nottoo good. HoweverifJoe dosent wantto talk about
it will understand, asT know he has been through Hell.

We have four living with us Now, who were
prisoners of the Japs for three years. and the things they
went throughis Almost unbelievable but they are doing
fine And gaining daily.

How was Joe health? I guess [ am right when
callhim Joe. I have almost forgottenthe boys firstnames.

Lt Grunewald said he saw Higgins in France
afterthe liberation.

Asyetlhaventheard fromany ofthe boys other
thanthe Pilot.

Willsay solong fornow. Write me whenyoufeel
likeit.

Sincerely
(signed) Iva Underwood

* # #

(Handwritten)
3529 Midland Ave.
July 1, 1945.
Dear Margaret.

[suppose yougettired of my writing and always
asking questions. But since it is so near to the date of
Foy’sdeath last year Itis aboutall that is on my mind.
Today ayvearago wasthe lastletterhe wrote anyone. He
wrote his girl friend then. We are having so much bad
luck itseemseverything mustbe againstus. My sisterlost
herbaby this week. Itwas borndead and I'm wondering
what will happento usnext. My brotherin the Navy is
sailingagainafteralmost4 yrs. seaduty and I'm worried
abouthim. We couldn’ttake itifanything should happen
to him. Itseems we couldn’t.

continued on page 16



"Letters," con't. from page 15

I'm working herein Memphis. Foy s girl friend
ishere withme. No doubteo remembers his mentioning
herseveral times. Mazie is asweetkid too. She heard
Foy Leetalk alotabout Joe too. Has he gothome yet?
Iwon’task himtotell us whathe doesn’t wantto. I'dlike
to know—if he knows though —whether he waskilled
instantly or had to sufferand wait forthe explosion to kill
him.

I hada letter from Iva Underwood and she said
Lt. Grunwald wrote her that“Cres™ waskilled instantly
and didn’tknow what happened. He told herhow the
plane was hit. [ believe Foy waskilled instantly too. He
said they received adirect hit in the bombay and one in
the windshield which burst the fuel tanks. Well. I guess
you know more about that than I do.

I"llgonow. AndifJoe canand will letusknow
that one thing we would appreciate it. I hope I'm not
asking too much. But I'd do the same for you — or
anything —ifthe case wasreversed. ButFoy wassodear
tous. ThatisallnowI guesstoyousoI'll say solongtil
later.

Write whenyoucan.

Love

(signed) EvaMae H.
# * % # #

This was the last letter in the collection Joe
gave the Museum. Seven crewman on Free Delivery
parachuted safely to earth. Six of them were cap-
tured by the Germans and interned for the rest of the
war. All six returned to the United States. One
evaded capture and about six weeks later was back
in England. Three died from either the flak hit or the
explosion of the bomber. They were the “Alabama”
boys.

Joe's mother and sister received at least one
letter from next-of-kin of eight of the plane’s crew.
The next-of-kin of the pilot, Second Lieutenant Ed-
ward A. Grunewald, did not send any correspon-
dence, but.Joe’s family learned ofhis capture through
other letters. After his return to the United States,
Joe visited the family of Foy Lee Holcombe and the
widow of Ory Cresswell.

,..).

> >

16

-
The LeRhone 80 horsepower rotary engine of World War 1.

"EXhibitS," con't. from page 7

On February 27. a crate from the National Mu-
seum of Naval Aviation (NMNA). Pensacola. Florida
arrived. Itcontained a World Warl era 80 horsepower
LeRhone Rotary Engine. Asthe nameimplies.arotary
engine was anengine thatrotated about a fixed crank-
shaft. Compared to ourradial engines on exhibit, this
engine issmall, butitpowered World War fighters such
asthe Sopwith Pupand Nieuport 11. The LLeRhone 80
displaced 667 cubic inches and weighed 268 pounds.

We acquired the LeRhone on loan from NMNA
through the efforts of Dick Trupp. who worked with
Helen Watson and Doug Kirby of NMNA to get the
engineto Topeka. Itistruly aspit-and-polishengine with
shined brass and chrome components. Itisexhibited by
the Jenny in Hangar 602.

OnMarch 7. Dick. Stu Entz, and Martin Moyer
traveled tothe Strategic Airand Space Museum (SASM)
near Ashland, Nebraska toretrieve anexhibitwe placed
onloantotheminthe fall of 1998. The exhibitis the top
rear.remote gun turret fora Boeing B-29 Superfortress.
After accepting the turret on loan, the folks at SASM
builta stand to exhibititand manufactured two false 50
caliber machine gun barrelsto putinthe turret. Forthe
transferback to Topeka. they left the gunturretcomplete
asthey had itdisplayed. so we now have the stand and
replica gun barrels onloan from SASM. The gun turret
iscurrently displayved by the Fairchild UC-61K inHan-
gar 602.



April/ May
CalendarofEvents
April
Monday, April 9
Membership Luncheon
Jean Wanner Education
Thg remote twin 50- leﬁf;g‘j: (I;_':nler
caliber gun turret from z o
: 'a B-29 Superfortress. Our guest speakers will be
Dale Allen continues work onthe TANK engine in studenfs from
the workshop. Thisisa partial rebuild, as we donot have Seaman High School
all the partsand pieces to build upa complete engine. It with their History Day
doeslook good, though and will work as a cutaway-type contestentries
exhibit. Doing some research, we found that the TANK
engine wasaconversionengine made by the Milwaukee Saturday, April 28
Tank Company beginningin 1928. The company con- Annual Celebrity
verted liquid-cooled Curtiss OX-5 engines to the air- Pancake Feed
cooled TANK. When comparing a photo ofthe OX-5 to Hangar 602
the TANK, we candefinitely see the OX-3"slower halfin TAM. -12PM.
the conversion.
The onset of the Great Depression in 1929 hurt May
Milwaukee Tank Company’s venture with the TANK
enginesand by 1932, they were out of the market. Some Saturday, May 19
aircraft that flew with TANK conversions included the Armed Forces Day at Heartland Park
Curtiss Robin, American Eagle 110-T, and Travel Air Heartland Park Raceway
2000-T. The Rowley-Curtiss IN-4D2 Jenny replicain 9 A.M.—-5P.M.
ourcollectionhasa TANK engine init.and we have used
thatasareference for the one in the shop. Thereisno Membershjp Luncheon in May
Martin Moyer and Amos Page have been busy The next luncheon is Monday, June 11.
producing wooden scooter planes. After having zero
sales during the Christmas season, we sold eight of the D ) )
scootersoverathree-week period in January-February.
Two were sold outofthe Gift Shop and Martinmade six

individual sales. He was getting special requests that
resulted in a University of Nebraska scooter. one in

Texas University colors, and one in the New England Patriots colors.

Martin has scooters placed in a couple ofantique/flea market shops. and we always have three or four in our
Gift Shop. Othersare stored in Hangar 604.

The large model aircrafi carrier that will eventually be the USS ORISK ANY exhibit left for Gardner, Kansas
where professional model builder Larry Todd is going to rebuild the hull and flight deck to ORISKANY *s 1966
configuration.

RobertJohnston is working in Derby. Kansas on the vertical finand horizontal stabilizer of our F-86H Sabre,
while newmember Mike Madden has been doing corrosion control and surface preparation work on the landing
gearstruts ofthe F-84 Thunderstreak in Hangar 604.

[thas been a busy winter with no signs of letting up as we head into spring. =
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Callingall Volunteers
Getready forthe Annual Pancake Feed

This is a call for all volunteers to block out * Drinkservers,
Saturday, April 28 on your calendars for Combat Table cleanups.
AirMuseum. Thatisthe date forourannual Celeb- Kitchen Police duty —making pots of coffee,
rity Pancake Feed. The Feed runs from 7 A.M. - refilling juicepitchers,
12 Noon. Final preparations forthe feed beginabout Runners formoving fullandempty coffeepotsto
6 A.M. thatmorning. and from the serving table, and

Cleanup Crew aftertheeventisover.

We need plenty of volunteers to help run this "

event successfully. We move aircraft, clean the Thisisamajor fund-raiser for CAM, anda fun

hangar floor, and set up tables and chairs on the  one for our volunteers, celebrity participants, and
Thursdayor Friday before the Feed. Onthedayofthe  patrons. Member Dan Pulliam plansto havesome
eventwewillneed volunteersatthe followingstations: ~ ofhisband students play for us again this year.

Pre-Event
Start coffee pots, Please help us where youcan. Ifitcannotbeas
Fill syrupcontainers, and awaorking valunteer. perhapsvoucando pre-event
Putbutter, juice, milk onice atservice table ticketsales. Atanyrate comeonoutand havesome
During Event pancakes with the celebrities.
Ticketsellers,
Sausage cookers/servers (often witha - > >

Celebrity)

Non-Profit Org.
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